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AGENDA QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 
MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 12, 2017 

Item #5: Recycled Water Storage and Distribution System Project, Project No. 07507: Approval of Plans and Specifications and Call for Bids for the 
1) Storage Tank and Pump Station and 2) Distribution Pipelines System 

 

Q: For agenda item 5, the recycled water projects, is it the 
case that the Whitesell extension portions already completed 
are included in the budget as part of the overall cost, but are 
not going to be part of the bid specifications? 
 

Also, will conduit for the high-speed fiber project also be 
installed when the recycled water distribution pipes are put 
in? 
 

 

A: Regarding the Recycled Water Project, the pipeline in the new section of  
Whitesell road was put in at the time of the construction of the roadway and 
therefore is not included in this project. The cost is included in the overall project 
costs. 
 

No placement of fiber optic cables is included in this pipeline project for various 
reasons including: 
 

1. Fiber is typically installed fairly shallow and require pull boxes to be 
installed intermittently (typically 600 feet or less).  Much of the RW 
pipeline is more than 4 feet deep.  Many locations are up to 10 feet 
deep, and parts will be done by jack and bore.  Most of the alignment is 
in the center of traveled lanes making installation of fiber and pullboxes 
difficult.  On review of the draft standards that are detailed in the July 
2017 Request for Information Bid #1718-063017 Fiber-Optic Network 
Design Standards, fiber boxes are to be installed either in sidewalk areas, 
greenbelts, or very close to curves and gutters. Therefore, installation in 
the same trench as the pipeline is not recommended. 

 

2. Separating the cost of fiber from the rest of the project would be 
problematic from the state revolving fund loan standpoint as the fiber 
would not be funded under that program.  The water board would likely 
take issue with combining the two into the same project even if an 
estimate is made regarding the cost of fiber and it is separately funded. 
 

3. There are 11 locations of the pipeline that are crossing under storm 
drains, flood control channels and railroads that will require shoring and 
installation by jack and boring techniques.  This requires shoring for the 
jacking and receiving pits.  Installation of fiber through these locations 
would require additional trenching and/or redesign in the case of 
Caltrans and UPRR as they have specific requirements for casing and 
what goes inside the casings. 
 

4. Installation of fiber in same trench even if placed above the recycled 
water pipeline will complicate future customer connections to the RW 
pipeline as the Contractor would have to dig around the fiber conduit 
carefully to avoid damaging it to reach the pipeline below. 

 



 
Item #6: Recycled Water Facility Treatment and Disinfection – Phase I: Authorization to Execute a Professional Services Agreement for Design of 
a Recycled Water Package Membrane Treatment System 

 
Q: Would Hayward Based Porifera's membrane products be 
considered for the recycled water facility? 

 

 
A: Porifera experimental technology will not be included in the City’s Recycled 
Water Project. We reached out to Porifera months ago to pilot their technology 
at the WPCF but never heard back from them. I’m assuming that they are not 
ready to pilot their technology yet. 

 
 
Item #7: West Winton Landfill Leachate Conveyance System Replacement Project: Approval of Addendum No. 1, Award of Contract, and 
Appropriation of Funds 

 
Q: 1. For Item 7 regarding our landfill repairs, Are there any 
issues with the leachate extraction system (wells and 
pumps)? If so, is Waste Management handling those? 
 
2. Why isn’t WM paying for the Leachate Conveyance repair? 

It was their landfill.  And while the City owns the land, the 
staff report indicates that WM still owns the landfill waste - 
i.e. the garbage.  Since the leachate convenient system is 
only there to prevent the garbage from leaking toxins into 
the environment, it seems logical that it would be WM’s 
responsibility to maintain and repair the system. 

 

 

 

 
A:  1. No other apparent issues. Just multiple broken pipe joints. 
 
 
 
 

2. The short answer is that because the City owns the landfill.  
  

The longer answer is that this landfill was owned by Oakland Scavenger 
(now WMAC) and operated as a regional landfill. The landfill had none of the 
protections and features of the modern landfills and was threatening to 
contaminate the groundwater, the Bay, and waters of the state. So the State 
Water Quality Control Board ordered the landfill closed. WMAC did that in 
1974. Four years later, in 1978, the City negotiated with WMAC, and paid 
and purchased the landfill with the plan to develop it as a passive park. The 
City paid for the 59-acre landfill with deeding some City-owned properties in 
the industrial area to WMAC and payment of some cash. A short time after, 
the Water Board issued a maintenance order to the City obligating the City 
to perform post-closure maintenance of the landfill for practically forever. 
WMAC was completely off the hook. 
  
The City started to perform maintenance work including repairing and 
perfecting placement of a clay cap on the landfill to prevent rainwater from 
penetrating into the landfill (which could force leachate to seep out and 
cause further contamination and started placing vegetative cover on clay 
cap and seed it to allow wild natural grasses to grow to aid in the 
development of the passive park. 
  
In early 1990s the landfill started to discharge leachate with a color tinge 
into the Bay. The Water Board considered asking the City to build a sea wall 
to prevent the seepage. The cost was estimated around $20M. The City was 



able to convince the Board to allow the City to build a leachate collection 
(with pumps in wells at the landfill) and a leachate conveyance system to 
bring the leachate to the City’s WPCF for treatment. Fortunately, the Board 
agreed. 
  
In 1995 the City complained to the Water Board regarding the City’s sole 
responsibilities for this regional landfill maintenance. I went before the 
Board and testified. The Board was not very sympathetic but in the end with 
a narrow vote (5 to 4) agreed, over objections of WMAC’s Attorneys, to put  
 
 
WMAC partially on the hook for post-closure maintenance costs. The 
agreement has specific responsibilities assigned to each party. The City is 
responsible for maintenance of the leachate conveyance system and 
maintaining the outside of the landfill; WMAC is responsible for operating 
the conveyance system, including the extraction pumps, and submitting the 
required reports. The arrangement has worked fine ever since. The leachate 
piping failure is the current problem. Wells and pumps seem to be in 
working order at this time. 
  
The City (actually the sewer enterprise) has spent well over a million dollars 
over the past decades maintaining this landfill. According to the 
maintenance order, the City is not authorized to sell the landfill to a third 
party unless it obtains approval from the Water Board regarding any 
arrangements for continued post-closure maintenance. 

  
“Purchasing” a landfill (!) in 1978 may not have been a great idea. However, 
we are not alone. There are other cities around the Bay that did similar 
purchases. The difference may be that in their case general fund pays for 
the maintenance.  

 
 
Item #8: Adoption of Two Resolutions: 1) Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Agreements with West Coast Consultants (WC3); 4Leaf, Inc.; 
CEL Consulting, Inc.; and CSG, Consultants, to Provide Plan Check Services, Inspection Services, and Permit Technician Services; and 2) Increase 
the FY2018 Budget Appropriation for Consulting Services by an Additional $450,000 
 
 
Q: 1.  Why authorize the contracts for “subsequent years” 

instead of FY 2018? 
  
 
 

2.  What does “...on a form to be approved by the City 
Attorney” language mean? 

 
A: 1. These agreements are for one year with an option to extend for up to three 

years, we are stating that we will not exceed the budget appropriation for 
FY 18 and each year thereafter, if we extend.  We can add “FY 18, and 
subsequent years” for clarification. 

 
2.  This language has been in place for many years (see attached resolution 

from 2013).  Basically, it is following the contract language where the 



 signature line for the City Attorney says, “Approved as to form”. The CAO 
would need to adjust this if need be. 

 
With respect to the resolution language about City Attorney approval, I 
have also seen it written this way, “…in a form approved by the City 
Attorney.”  I tend to think this version is a little less awkward.   
 

 
 
Item #10 Review of Alameda County Measure A1 Affordable Housing Bond Timeline and Process 

 
Q: In the Staff report for Item 10:  A-1 Housing Bond, on page 6 of 
11, in the chart regarding Habitat projects in the pipeline, the West 
Harder Road project is valued with a total cost of development at 
$6.75 million. For 22 units, that would be a per unit cost of $307 
thousand (as opposed to the $675 cost listed in the chart). Is this 
accurate? 

 

 
A: Correct.  This was a typo in the chart. 

 

 
Q. Can the Tiny Homes proposal on Berry Avenue by Thomas 
Flemming be included on the list of projects in the pipeline? 

 

 
A: Yes. 
 

 
Q. Is the intent to have a RFP process that looks something like the 
following? 

1. Develop and release a basic RFP by early February (at the 
latest) with a short response time (4 weeks), not tied to any 
one funding stream.  
Basic Components: 

a. Full description of proposal including amenities, 
sustainability features, and any employment or 
supportive services planned as any part of the 
project (concept through occupancy) 

b. Target population (income and household size) 
c. Cost per unit with explanation of the cost  
d. Proposed location and status of site control 
e. Proposed management of project/development 

and, if rental, of property management 
f. Experience of developer and references 
g. Explanation of financing for the project to indicate 

viability of the project and sources of funding 

 
A: Staff can respond to this question/suggestion during tonight’s meeting. 
 



h. Plan for facilitating occupancy by Hayward 
Residents 
 

2. In order to rank and manage the proposals: 
a. Review our Housing Element’s identified housing 

needs with a quick update - if needed - based on 
current Census Data, and Homeless Counts to 
identify our current Moderate, Low, Very Low, and 
Extremely Low income needs.  

b. Subtract the amount of housing already approved 
or close to final to identify our gaps in the various 
income categories and household sizes.  

c. Utilize our existing priorities related to 
Sustainability and Complete Communities 

d. In order to match proposals with the most 
appropriate funding stream, Itemize the criteria for 
all available and emerging funds including but not 
limited to CDBG, Inclusionary Housing and Housing 
Authority Funds, A-1, HOME, ESG (as appropriate), 
Boomerang, Sustainable Communities, new State 
programs (as finalized), Tax Credits. 

e. Evaluate what fees can be waived 
outright/subsidized verses those that we need to 
pay ourselves back for 

f. Add these additional values: 
i. Quality Affordable Housing should not 

cost more to build than comparable 
market rate products.   

ii. Housing should be built to be affordable 
by design, not by subsidy.  

iii. Homeownership opportunities are just as 
important as rental.  

iv. Restrict housing affordability in perpetuity 
whenever possible. 

 
 



 

 

 

Item 11—PH 17-102 

 
Mission Seniors Residential Development 
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